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Retail Outlets BTEs S

An Extensive Network

Capturing Growing Opportunities In China
The Group's sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,
Chongging, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to

efficiently respond to customer needs and deepen its market penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 2,216 retail outlets, comprising 2,032 concessionary counters
and 184 retail shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Embry Manufacturing Co. was established by
Mr. Cheng Man Tai as a sole proprietorship in
Hong Kong to engage in the business of
garment manufacturing.
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The brand, EMBRY FORM, was created in 1977
and the Group launched EMBRY FORM
products in Hong Kong through wholesale
channels.
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The first EMBRY FORM concessionary counter
was opened in Hong Kong in September 1980.
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Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was established in
1987, and the Group moved its production base
to Shenzhen in 1989.
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Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. was
established in 1993 and it commenced
production in Changzhou in 1996.
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The Group launched a new product series
under the brand FANDECIE in 1999, targeting
at the younger generation.
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The Group launched COMFIT in January 2006,
products feature functional brassieres, corsets
and panties.
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Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was
established in January 2006 in preparation for
the Group’s expansion of production capacity
in China.
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The Group soft launched a new product series
under the brand LIZA CHENG or LC in June
2006, targeting at the premium luxury lingerie
market.
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Embry Holdings Limited was successfully listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 18 December 2006.
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Phase | of Embry (Shandong) Garments
Industrial Park was completed and a grand
opening ceremony was held on 28 December
2007.
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Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited was
established in October 2009. It acquired a
14-floor commercial building under
construction located in Yangpu District,
Shanghai City, at a consideration of
approximately RMB380,638,000. The building
has a construction area of approximately 11,430
sq. m.
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The fifth brand, E-BRA, was launched in the
fourth quarter of 2010. It is positioned as a
mass-market brand with affordable prices so as
to attract customers with relatively basic
consumption needs.
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The construction work of Embry Tower in
Shanghai was successfully completed by the
end of 2010, which laid a foundation for the
Group to establish the significant strategic
layout of further expanding the domestic
market, and signified an important milestone
for the Group's development.
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The Group introduced IADORE, a new brand
which positioned at affordable price points for
the mass market, at the end of 2012. Its fresh
and fashionable products have further
broadened the Group's brand portfolio, which
in return helped reach more customers.
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The Group's first men’s underwear brand IVU
was launched in the second half of 2013. The
brand was well received by the market and
successfully made its way into many high-end
department stores in the Mainland.
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The second phase of the Jinan plant in
Shandong commenced its trial production as
scheduled in the first quarter of 2014.
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The Group’s brand-new modern production
base in Changzhou, Jiangsu Province was
completed and a grand opening ceremony was
held in May 2015.
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On 1 December, Embry Group held its 40th
anniversary celebrations at the newly
established industrial park in Changzhou to
share the Group’s beauty legends and brilliant
achievements.
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gerie brand owner and retailer in China, Embry

vays strived to provide customers with stylish and
comfortable products since its establishment forty years ago.
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands
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Independent Auditors’” Report
%*”ﬂiﬁ?%&ﬁfﬁﬁft

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 89 to 170,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

sl

B ZAFERERARAZBKRR
(RESHSITMEALZFRAF])

ARz EED AT (R EEATNERFRE
ARG ERER AR (EAF ) REMBL

F10ELFFTE
ANGRE M BHRE  REUEHREREER = —H

F+A=+—-BNGEEUBHRAREBEEZHIE
FENEARRE  Fa2HBGRR  GaEn®

KMFERTMNER  URE2FFER
MY AR E KL o

e R HE

ESNGS M BRRARKENER

BEAREFRRABERBEE SRS ARMAKE
BB RE LN RIZBEBCA RGO RE R E
REGAMBHRE  WSHEAMBRRIEFLEEM
RNFHRIR - REBEERBRREGE M |MR P4
ARREDES] - ARERA MBI T FEHRKE
KRB R EAH R -

REE S E

BN EERRBRMANBAZSHEE P ERRIE
HER - RFIHREERDRERGBE - Rtz
BAMBETATRELMCAE  RABRTRARS
AR AEREMA LTS ESAEEAMEE -

BMERBEBEEGTEASEM (FEETEDE
1TEAT - EEERIBREMETERRRL - LRE K
MITES UWEERERSHFAUBRREETE
FEAEME A RERAL

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 38 87



Independent Auditors” Report (Continued)

%%ﬁ@%ﬁfﬁﬁi( E)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement
GOl EZ=

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE —T—HAF+_A=+—HItFE

2015 2014
—E-EF T F
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
KiaE FET FHET
REVENUE = 5 2,535,818 2,383,127
Cost of sales SHE KR (466,222) (422,922)
Gross profit EF 2,069,596 1,960,205
Other income and gains, net Hag A RUES - YE5E 6 45,046 37,976
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHEBEX (1,534,899) (1,485,498)
Administrative expenses THREX (267,369) (234,932)
Other expenses HFx 7 (7,169) (6924)
Finance costs BhE Ak AN 8 (6,617) (2,270)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE Aa Fl 9 298,588 268,557
Income tax expense Frefim = 12 (97,014) (80,464)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AATHEB AEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEHER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 201,574 188,093
EARNINGS PER SHARE AAREE AEML
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15
— Basic (HK cents) — B (L) 48.38 4514
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 OB(l) 48.38 4514




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FOEBWEE
s [ &= T A X
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE —T—HAF+_A=+—HItFE
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z= g
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEA 201,574 188,093
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE Hi2mEBAX
Other comprehensive expense to be REZ A EHHERIEEN
reclassified to the income statement in Hih2mAX :
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on WERINESEFEE 2
translation of foreign operations P& 4, =48 (96,984) (14,196)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AAREBANELFEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZHEHIKRARTE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 104,590 173,897

W



Consolidated Statement

i O RIS N i 2

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

of Financial Position

2015 2014
—E-HF T F
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
Kzt FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 16 977,465 911,289
Investment properties "EYE 17 311,121 318,699
Prepaid land lease payments JE £ FA & FUE 18 37,363 38,989
Deferred tax assets BIEFIBEE 27 73,781 72,129
Deposits Be 21 12,414 17,061
Total non-current assets IEMENE ERE 1,412,144 1,358,167
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories ER{ 19 716,853 722,619
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 20 90,486 89,961
Prepayments, deposits and other TEFRIE « 12 e R E A ER
receivables FRIE 21 56,335 58,412
Cash and cash equivalents WENRIREEEY 22 233,017 180,105
Total current assets RE)EEMAE 1,096,691 1,051,097
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Trade and bills payables ENESERRENEE 23 68,206 146,527
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRERITER 24 124,878 90,639
Tax payable FE(SFiIE 71,806 74,598
Other payables and accruals H b fE S 5008 K FEE T IR 25 230,033 222,343
Total current liabilities BB ERE 494,923 534,107
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 601,768 516,990
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERABEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,013,912 1,875,157
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings = ERITER 24 183,333 94,361
Deferred liabilities FEIEE F 26 3,083 4,070
Deferred tax liabilities FEFTEE & 27 36,673 32,161
Total non-current liabilities IEREAaEAE 223,089 130,592
Net assets BEFE 1,790,823 1,744,565

w



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
im0 WA (38

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—mEF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
libgEa FET FET
EQUITY o
Equity attributable to owners AARBEE ANEEER
of the Company
Share capital [N 28 4,166 4,166
Reserves & 30 1,786,657 1,740,399
Total equity ErEm 1,790,823 1,744,565
Ngok Ming Chu Cheng Pik Ho Liza
E BTk BREE
Director Director
BF EBE
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Consolidated;Statement of Changes in Equity
it 0 e 7o 22 B 7R

Year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ —F—HAF+_-_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KAREE AR
Reserves
i
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share
Share  premium Contributed revaluation reserve fluctuation  Goodwill option  Retained Total Total
capital  account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits  reserves equity
Bt BEEfN CEE¥RR  ENR® BRE
B& BER EHES itk EEREE E  EERE WE  REER aRE aER
Notes HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HKS$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
it Fér Fhr FAr FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 30) (note 30) (note 30)
(Hizt30) (Hit0) (Ht0)
At TJanuary 2015 W-Z-ha%-A-H 4,166 369,644 122,610 3,336 97,691 132,59 (3,168) 32,784 984,908 1,740,399 1,744,565
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - - - - 201574 201574 201574
Bxchange differences arising on WERINEBRELEL
translation of foreign operations EHEE - - - - - (96,984) - - - (96,984) (96,984)
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  ER2EMRA / (it
for the year piat] - - - - - (96,984) - - 201,574 104,590 104,590
Share options lapsed FRARFE K - - - - - - - (4,861) 4,861 - -
2014 final and special dividends EREXN=E-IF
declared and paid KERERRE 14 - - - - - - - - (41,666) (41,666) (41,666)
2015 interim dividend ZZ-hERERS 14 - - - - - - - - (16666)  (16666)  (16,666)
Transfer from retained profits BHRBET - - - - 27,158 - - - (27,158) - -
A31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+=A=t-H 4,166 369,644 122,610 3,336 124,849 35,610 (3,168) 27,923 1,105,853 1,786,657 1,790,823
AL T January 2014 R-Z2-mE-f—A 4166 369644 12610 33% 74340 14679 (3768) 34303 §76225 1624080 1628246
Profit for the year FRRA - - - - - - - - 188093 188093 188093
Exchange differences arising on FERNEBREEL
translation of foreign operations [ERZR - - - - - (1419) - - - (14196) (14196)
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  ER2EMRA /(i)
for the year pit = = = = = (14,196) = = 188093 173897 173897
Equity-sectled share option amangements IEZ S (F 2 ERELZHE 29 - - - - - - - 754 - 754 754
Share options apsed BBIRERM - - - - - - - (22m3) 273 - -
2013 final and special dividends ERRXH-E-=F
declared and paid RERERIRE 14 - - - - - - - - (41,666) (41,666) (41666)
2014 interim dividend —E-MERSHRS 14 - - - - - - - - (16,666) (16,666) (16,666)
Transfer from retained profits BARRBET - - - - 23351 - - - (23351) - -
At31 December 2014 RZZ-mE
+-A=t-H 4,166 369,644 122610 3336 97691 132594 (3168) 32784 984908 1,740,399 1744565
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mOIRE MBI

Year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ —F—HAF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
HiaE FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBCRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 4 %t A2 A1) 298,588 268,557
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Finance costs ELEZ DN 8 6,617 2,270
Bank interest income SRIT R B U 6 (2,255) (1,708)
Depreciation e 9 49,533 36,432
Amortisation of prepaid land T+ IR ERIE
lease payments N 9 974 907
Loss on disposal/write-off of items HE MEMmE  BER
of property, plant and equipment REBIEE 2 EE 9 416 593
Provision/(write-back of provision) BREFERE (BERED)
for obsolete inventories, net FEE 9 12,413 (4,062)
Impairment/(write-back of impairment fEURE B ERFURE,
allowance) of trade receivables ORER R () 9 (17) 1,220
Changes in fair value of BN EEE)
investment properties 6 (8,000) (1,000)
Equity-settled share option AR HE S 1~ 2 B RS e A =
expense 29 - 754
358,269 303,963
Increase in inventories FE AN (6,647) (151,109)
Increase in trade receivables FEWE 5 BRFIE N (508) (4,105)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TR I © e Rk HAth FEUR R IE
deposits and other receivables B () 6,756 (10,901)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FEfRHE BRI N EEE
bills payables GRA) (78,321) 57,382
Increase in other payables Hoth JE < 3R IB K FEET SRIE L AN
and accruals 7,690 12,217
Increase/(decrease) in deferred EES &S, O )
liabilities (987) 191
Cash generated from operations KRS ® 286,252 207,638
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERBEBFEH (941) (500)
Overseas taxes paid EfEINFIIA (98,469) (72,944)
Net cash flows from R 7 IS M AFRE
operating activities 186,842 134,194




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
RO IR B (i8)

Year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ —F—HAF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mF
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
libgEa FET FET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 B 2,255 1,708
Additions to prepaid land lease a3 & 08

payments (1,784) -
Purchases of items of property, BEYX  WERRKEER

plant and equipment 16 (173,591) (303,195)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  BENKEER

property, plant and equipment ZATEIE 124 205
Net cash flows used in KEREY ZH M FRE

investing activities (172,996) (301,282)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AMETE2RERE

ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings I RITE K 371,838 120,000
Repayment of bank borrowings EBERITER (248,627) (56,750)
Dividends paid BARIARE 14 (58,332) (58332)
Interest paid 25 2 (6,617) (2,270)
Net cash flows from MEEH 2RO IRAFHE

financing activities 58,262 2,648
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) RERESEEBYZ

IN CASH AND 2, (Rd) B8

CASH EQUIVALENTS 72,108 (164,440)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHUIZ2H e RESEEY

beginning of year 180,105 346,327
Effect of foreign exchange EREE 2 FE B8

rate changes, net (19,196) (1,782)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESRESEEY

AT END OF YEAR 233,017 180,105
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERFESEEBYWERZDMN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B LIRITEEER 22 173,493 180,105
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ REEAREEFHEIE ALK =188

maturity of less than three months 2 B E BATE R

when acquired 22 59,524 =
Cash and cash equivalents BEMRESEEY 233,017 180,105

w



Notes to Finan;cial Statements
B9l 77 R 2= Bl B

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

1. Corporate Information 1.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006 under the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and the principal place of
business of the Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre Il, 200
Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Limited
(“Harmonious World"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"), which is considered by the directors as the
Company’s ultimate holding company.

2.1 Basis of Preparation 2.1

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HKS'000)
except where otherwise indicated.

RAEEHR
ARBARZZZERFNAZTALARERE
BEERBERAREA(-ARN—FE0= B
BREDNREREEMRLSERLER
A A e AN A A H FE M E B HE A Cricker
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands * i1 2N A &) ) & 2
BRI DB AR ANELE 2005 26
RO TH7E -

ARAMEIERBRKEER - FHAMEAR
A EREBFBERNMBHRRME - F
NARENERXHEHETREAEE) -

7K/ ) A& Harmonious World Limited ([ Harmonious
World ) BIHJ/E A & * Harmonious World 72 5 /&
BERHE((EBERHS MKy - 5
58 4 Harmonious World A28 A B B S 4 & A
e

2FE%

ZEVBRRBBEBT LGNS RAENE
BPBREER ([ FBU KRS ER]) (B
PIBEAUBHREEN BAGTEN(E
BEHER]) R2E) BEARERAK
BERAIGOERBRBERE - FHBHHME
RIBELRAERE - EREMERERT
BEFt 8 - REBEPIN ZEFBRRIAE
T2 FAEESARERERL T (TA
) @
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7 5 eRa= b ot (38)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(0) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

2.1

ENEE»)

GaEE
BANBREOEADTIRENE AT (58
(AEEBE-—F-RE+-A=+—Hi1
EENRTBRE  WBATAAATEESR
P R (DIE A EE) BAE
HH 2 RE AR LK TS O RARRR
L E AR RALE BT A B A (10
AEEERTHAL N AT EREH R0
SEHME RS Y EREE R - NIEE
41 o

HMARFEEXFEEE P RRELARKS
BRI OER - RIARKERF G
HECHRAHREHRNENIREERE 1]
HEEERIER 83

@ - ERBEHRHOEERBEANGOR
BE:

(b) HHEORHMELNEN: &
(© REBMIRRELBERRE -

/88 22 =174 AR [R) B 3t A o B 7 e R R B
AR —BHEAHRBER - MBRARIME
BEAKERSGEHEEARGAE B
ERFEHIERBBLLE -

B kEMEERENSAKED BERA
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7 5 eRa= b ot (38)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

2.1

22

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described for subsidiaries above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the

cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises

(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in
the consolidated income statement. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to the consolidated income statement or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2070-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle

2.1

22
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Notes to Finanfial Statements (Continued)
By 5 2= B 5F (48)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

SETBREE NRIRE @)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2
(continued)

BTXHPER T ZEFEz T —F&F

B BIHREE A FRENEN —F——F

Orther than as explained below regarding the impact of Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs 20112013 Cycle, the adoption of the above revised F B FE B EG R FEN

standards has had no significant financial effect on these financial H#E - BRI DA BB S ET 2 AR RIS B 7 R

statements. WiBEASKPBZE -

(a) The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued (@) RZT—NFE—- ARG =—FE—FF
in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of BT F BB EIREER AR

FRUEENZREEW RS LR
BER] ° RAFEEMNZFEFTH

HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are effective for the
current year are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria in
HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether the
segments are similar. The amendments also clarify
that a reconciliation of segment assets to total assets
is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation
is reported to the chief operating decision maker.
The amendments have had no impact on the
Group.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e, an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements. In
addition, an entity that uses a management entity is
required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not receive
any management services from other entities.

B UNNE

BEMBERMEELF L
7E BEERNERE LY
BHEENESHEANGZ AR
R BAREEEREEL A
B BREBEZEENHR
RN D R B BN &
R RFA ° ZFERT TR
EARENMEEREERE
ZHRINFBREELERKE
BEZBERTHARE - ZiE
RIS AREEY L

B GETERISE 24 SRAHRTEA
TRFE EFEEEREIR
HEBEEABRBHER)
RERAL - BETHBAL
WEMRE - I EREEE
BNERARENEEREE
X - AAEERAREF
Hitv ERRHNEERY © %
ERHAEEYEET[ITE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7 5 eRa= b ot (38)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2
(continued)

(b) The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20112013 Cycle issued
in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are effective for the
current year are as follows:

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the
portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be applied not
only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but
also to other contracts within the scope of HKFRS 9
or HKAS 39 as applicable. The amendment is
applied prospectively from the beginning of the
annual period in which HKFRS 13 was initially
applied. The amendment has had no impact on the
Group as the Group does not apply the portfolio
exception in HKFRS 13.

HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that HKFRS 3,
instead of the description of ancillary services in
HKAS 40 which differentiates between investment
property and owner-occupied property, is used to
determine if the transaction is a purchase of an asset
or a business combination. The amendment is
applied prospectively for acquisitions of investment
properties. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
issued by the Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) during the current financial year. The main impact to the
financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the financial statements.

100 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED R ERERAT —
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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7 5 eRa= b ot (38)

—RFE+=ZA=+—H

Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2017)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers*

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’
Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

¢ No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for

adoption.
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Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. The
Group is not yet in a position to state whether they would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value, which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
the income statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwiill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4

1

06

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and financial assets is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual

value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used

for this purpose are as follows:

QOver the lease terms
4.5% to 20%
10% to 20%
10% to 20%

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income

and gains in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment

is recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans and
in administrative expenses for receivables.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e, removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debrors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e, the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to administrative
expenses in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
COsts.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4

114

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
after making due allowances for obsolete or slow moving items. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on the estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income statement so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e, assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside the income statement is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into

consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary

differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China is subject to a withholding tax under the prevailing
tax rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;
(0 interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective

interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to
use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure incurred
in the construction cost of infrastructure projects, are recognised at
their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
itis intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the income statement by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group'’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“Equity-settled Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 29 to the financial
statements.

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for Equity-settled
Transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as an
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of these employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group'’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change

in fair value of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose

fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or income statement is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or income statement, respectively).

2.4

FESHTHRERBE @)

HitvBEREA (&)

BERAR A

BEREAN R AR BT BB R IR SR A
Ry % AN 52 (B HE AR e S AN R B A ) ) R ALK
B (AT E B HER

shs

ZERBHERRABT(ARRZNEERE) 2
Fle AEEBTEERBITRAENREY
MEBRTERRAZEBIUZDEEE
FHEINERSGEERZXZAHNAEEET
BERBAEDREEEEXRAR - RNAEER
INERBEN BB EERBERESHRG
ERERzEEREXGZE - HEKIRA
RENESELNZENRERTER

RIBINEBR LKA E 2 FEEHEBIRER
R AHZERBE - RIBINE R FERTHE
ZIFEHBEARBEATERE R ZEXRBE -
MEIEERIRE M AELNKRAHEE - R
BB AT EEZ W ENEE D
TERREE (BNE A 2 T W s sk i 2 3R B iR
HEAFEEKGEIEER  HBREZHETD
AR HE 2 i e sk W RFER)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 58~ 121

e



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their income statements are

translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Y i ¥R 7= M 5E (48 )

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

3.

1

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences as at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

As explained in note 27 to the financial statements, withholding tax
is levied on dividends to be distributed by subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January

2008. Deferred tax is provided, at the applicable withholding tax rate,

on the undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that
would be distributed to their respective holding companies outside
Mainland China in the foreseeable future.

The Group's investment properties at fair value in Mainland China

are all held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation and

they are considered to be held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties at fair value is measured
than through sale. Accordingly, deferred tax on the Group's
investment properties at fair value is measured to reflect the tax

consequences of recovering the carrying amounts of the investment

properties through use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) by reference to independent valuations;

(b) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences;
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

(c) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable estimates

of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts, and (where possible) from
external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 17 to the
financial statements.

Properties applying for building ownership certificates

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had not obrtained the building
ownership certificates for certain properties located in Mainland
China and was still in the progress of completing the application of

these certificates. The Group believes that it is highly possible for the

Group to obtain these certificates. Thus, no impairment nor any
provision of the aforesaid properties was considered necessary as of
31 December 2015. This is the best estimation by the management
based on current information. Further details are given in note 16 to
the financial statements.

Valuation of share options

The fair value of options granted under the share option scheme is
determined using the binomial model. The significant inputs in
determining the fair values include the weighted average share price
at the grant date, exercise price, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield,

expected volatility, expected life of options, and exit rate of directors

and staff. Further details are given in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Inventory provision

The Group manufactures and sells goods and is subject to changing
consumer demands and fashion trends. As a result it is necessary to
consider the recoverability of the cost of inventories and the
associated provision required. When calculating the inventory
provision, management considers the nature and condition of the
inventory, as well as applying assumptions around anticipated
saleability of finished goods and future usage of raw materials.
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Notes to Finanfial Statements (Continued)
By 5 2= B 5F (48)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

4. Segment Information 4. DEEH
The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture and sale AEEZFERENHRLTNE - A4S -
of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear and sleepwear. Since this is KR REEX 2 8BLE R IHE - BRILAARSE
the only operating segment of the Group, no further analysis thereof ZME—EE DI B2 E— S 2 DT o
is presented. In determining the Group’s geographical information, REREE 2 R &R - W ERTRE
the revenue information is based on the locations of the customers, PREMRER - BIERBEE CRLEHIEE
and the total non-current assets information, other than deferred ERIN) BRHR B EPTEH B ERE -

tax assets, is based on the locations of the assets.

Mainland China Hong Kong Others Total

hE AR EB ity £
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—B-If —F-EF —B-IFf _—F-NF —F-1F _—FT-NF —B-nfF _—T-@OmF
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FiET TET FET FAT FET FET FiEx TET

Revenue from external IREE 2 W=
customers 2,431,547 2,269,951 99,007 103,79 5,264 9382 2,535,818 2,383,127
Non-current assets FEREEE 1,251,298 1,209,486 87,065 76,552 - - 1,338,363 1,286,038

Capital expenditure incurred FERERFEL

during the year 168,540 279,113 5,051 2% - = 173,591 279349
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, as no revenue BHE_Z-—RGFR-_ZE—WEF+_RA=+—
from sales to any customer of the Group has individually accounted BIESE  AREAEETEEMNER ZHE
for over 10% of the Group's total revenue, no information about Uz 25 18] Bl 4 7 5= (B 48 W2 10% BA 1=+ B0 R
major customers is presented under HKFRS 8. RIERBYHREEANFESREREZFTFH

5.  Revenue 5. W

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WRENRRERR ZIMNFERE LS R
allowances for returns and trade discounts. ZEEEE -
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Notes to Finanfial Statements (Continued)
By 5 2= B 5F (48)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

6.  Other Income and Gains, Net 6. HtW AR  FEE
2015 2014
—EB-RF e Sinfes
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHETT FAET
Other income HAp A
Subsidy income* fHERUT A * 39,076 28,443
Gross rental income HEE WA azE 14,663 11,036
Contingent rents receivable in respective of KEREN RIS AT S
operating leases 842 833
Bank interest income BITHE A 2,255 1,708
Royalty income BRI A 161 160
Others Hith 1,766 2,571
58,763 44,751
Gains, net W - R
Foreign exchange differences, net MEH =R - HEE (21,717) (7,775)
Changes in fair value of investment BEMERNTERE) (Mt 17)
properties (note 17) 8,000 1,000
(13,717) (6,775)
45,046 37,976
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this * UL T A 525 e ] R 23 K 2 15 1 3 3 34
income. FIF o
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

7. Other Expenses 7.  Hhfx
2015 2014
—E—RE —Z—OF
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Charitable donation ZEEZRI 6,753 6,331

Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEYE BER

property, plant and equipment B E 2 BB 416 593
7,169 6,924

8. Finance Costs 8. MERAK
2015 2014
—E-RE T F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Total interest on bank loans LASRITIE TR B 6,617 2,270
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2015 — =

9.

7 5 eRa= b ot (38)

—RFE+=ZA=+—H

Profit Before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRI A
AREZBBARFIDIR GEA)

2015 2014
—B-AF —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FEIL
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFEMA 466,222 422,922
Depreciation e 49,533 36,432
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEASE 1 3h A0 & FR I8 2 B 974 907
Minimum lease payments under BEUTEIEL %fﬁi’]Z
operating leases in respect of: HEKFEERIE
Land and buildings itﬂ&@—‘r— 85,019 80,580
Contingent rents of retail outlets BEARANEED,
in department stores sk AR S 636,453 598,334
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERINFAY (T"BEES
directors’ and chief executive’s RATIAREFEN — /77 10) -
remuneration — note 10):
Wages and salaries ITENEH® 671,427 656,122
Provision/(write-back of provision) for IR BE(BERE)
long service payments (597) 368
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIET B 66,111 58,671
Equity-settled share option expense LA RS e 7 A~ BE RS e A S - 556
736,941 715,717
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2L R B 3,170 2,940
Advertising and counter decoration expenses EE B Y 138,509 161,556
Provision/(write-back of provision) for REFEEME (BERE) -
obsolete inventories, net REE 12,413 (4,062)
Impairment/(write-back of impairment JEWE ZERFURE,
allowance) of trade receivables* CRUBE R EREE ) = (17) 1,220
Research and development expenditure HE RFEZERAY 3,681 2,779
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE WEWE - BER
property, plant and equipment HEIEE 2B 416 593
Foreign exchange differences, net [EHE=8 - H5E 21,717 7,775
Gross and net rental income AE WA LEEE N E5E (15,505) (11,869)
Changes in fair value of investment properties HEYENT(EEE (8,000) (1,000)
Bank interest income RITHE WA (2,255) (1,708)
* The cost of inventories sold for the year included HK$162,118,000 & EEGEKABIZE TR - Btk %%59?

(2014: HKS156,410,000), relating to staff costs, depreciation of
manufacturing facilities, minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of land and buildings and the net provision/
(write-back of provision) for obsolete inventories, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for each

type of expenses.

Fok

The impairment/(write-back of impairment allowance) of trade

receivables is included in "Administrative expenses” on the face of the

consolidated income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

10.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

10.

BB N 1T AR = B

RIE ETRA - BB QA EHE 383(1)) (b),
OFNE ARAR(BEESH=ER) R
EPE IS &Y NN

as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—MmF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHETT FHAET
Fees ke 951 912
Other emoluments: HA S :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e o EAL R EEF 6,896 6,354
Bonuses* TE4L 7,497 11,820
Equity-settled share option expense VARGHE 2 1+ 2 B IR A =2 - 198
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ROREFIET 2R 36 36
15,380 19,320
* Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments * ARANTEFHHERETEAL » MIEAL
which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the B RBRAIIR N5 (BB B 18 )5 FI B —F B 9 b

Group.

The fair value of the share options granted in prior years, which has
been recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bl SR M 5T (48 )
31 December 2015 —Z—HAF+_-A=+—H

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 10. ESBRITHEATFIN =)

(continued)

2015 —E-FHE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled  Retirement
and share benefit
benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e SRS
EER ZBRE  BIEF
ik BRIz A X BE 5 BEH

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Executive directors: HITEE
Madam Ngok Ming Chu KLt - 3,105 3,086 - 18 6,209
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* HEEL L - 2,753 2,839 - 18 5,610
Ms. Lu Qun* BELL" - 1,038 1,572 - - 2,610
- 6,896 7,497 - 36 14,429
Independent non-executive B IEHTT
directors; BE:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki ARERE 317 - - - - 317
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung R E 317 - - - - 317
Prof. Lee T.S. TREYF 317 - - - - 317
951 - - - - 951
951 6,896 7,497 - 36 15,380
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31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration ~ 10. EBRITHRARETMN @)
(continued)
2014 —E-IF
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled  Retirement
and share benefit
benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
HE- DAIRRE S A+
=34 ZBRE  ORIKEA
e BNz EAL Fx TRl R
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEL FET FET FET FET FEL
Executive directors: HITEE
Madam Ngok Ming Chu EHB LT - 309 3148 6 16 6266
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* HEEL L - 2,648 2,846 158 16 5668
Mr. Cheng Man Tai*** BRI L™ = 610 5826 4 4 6,444
= 6,354 11,820 168 36 18,378
Independent non-executive BUHFHT
directors: EE:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki BRERE 304 - - 10 - 314
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung THELE 304 - - 10 - 314
Prof. Lee T.S. FREYK 304 - - 10 - 314
912 = = 30 = 942
912 6,354 11,820 198 36 19,320
’ Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, a director of the Company, is also the chief : AR A EFELEELZ + JTEERR A2 1T
executive officer of the Company. BABE o

on 2 February 2015.

Company (note 13).

There were no arrangements under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.
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Ms. Lu Qun was appointed as an executive director of the Company

Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an executive director of the Company
on 24 March 2014 and has been engaged as a consultant of the

#

ARAIHITESE °

i

BHLIR _E—AF_H_HEZER

AXRAARTEEZR X = F— M

A=A AEREZE RN AR (At

13) °

FRBRAYEESTHITRARRKERE

AR B BN 2 2Bk -



Notes to Finanfial Statements (Continued)
By 5 2= B 5F (48)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

11.  Five Highest Paid Individuals 1. BEESFAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FRNRAEHETATEE =882 (=2 -
(2014: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in F:=8) EHMFBEER LXK
note 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the FE0Ek I - FAHERME(ZZT—HF : MA)
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2014: two) highest FEARBEEFHTRRICZRFEE 2 F
paid employees who are neither directors nor chief executive of the BHEEELR T

Company are as follows:

2015 2014
“Z-HF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET F#ET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYAR 2,641 2,573
Bonuses fE4T 2,123 2,248
Equity-settled share option expense VAR S A<F B I hE B S2 - 108
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKIE R &7 78 70
4,842 4,999
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid BN IA TR Z FFE = R IFTHAR R
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as SEEEABMAT :
follows:

Number of employees

EEA™
2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ZT—MmfF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T % 1,000,000 78 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T 2 1,500,000 78 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T 2 2,000,000 75 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 2,500,000 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 78 7T 2 3,000,00078 7T 1 1
2 2
The fair value of the share options granted in prior years, which has P ER B HA N W e R EE R HE AR AE - A
been recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, FEREREBEE  STARNFERBIRE
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in eI A LMEEE RIFTRAR = E
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above REMEHEEENA -

non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

‘w
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12. Income Tax 12.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been

FriS %t

ERNEHIBREFRNGANERBEEZE
BEEF R 165% (ZT—PO4E : 165%) Z i
REH BT - Eiip HERFUEF ZFHIBE

calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the regions in which the

Group operates.

BAKEREEBR 2 BAIHEE -

2015 2014
=F-H%F —F-—AmF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEIL
Current — Hong Kong BREA%IE — &8
Charge for the year FATRIE 788 754
Qverprovision in prior years BIEEE 2 BERE (20) (10)
Current — Mainland China BVERFH I8 — R B K R
Charge for the year FATRIE 90,509 94,550
Qverprovision in prior years BIEEE 2 BERE - (46)
Deferred (note 27) IRIE (Ktat27) 5,737 (14,784)
Total tax charge for the year FEZAFIEY L 97,014 80,464

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at

the statutory rates for the regions in which the Company and the

majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

effective tax rates is as follows:

ARR B R EA BB R R M [ 2%
ERERERB AT MG E 2 HIRFA X - R
RERBEGFE 2 HARWERET

2015 2014

—E—-HEF —E—O4F

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FEIT

Profit before tax BB R A 298,588 268,557

Tax at the applicable rates BERAMRTE ZIE 77,595 68,460
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous % 45 & Hiff ~ BN ERF: 18

periods (20) (56)
Income not subject to tax HBERTZ WA (1,320) (165)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRIHIF 2 A 5,965 4473
Effect of withholding tax at 5% and 10% HAREE 2 BB A7) A

on the distributable profits of the Group's K Y A 2 5% 2 10%

PRC subsidiaries BHR & 11,028 10,272
Tax losses not recognised RIERH AR 8,776 7,109
Others Hi (5,010) (9,629)
Tax charge at the Group’'s effective rate BRARER 7 BERHERAE 2

HIAX H 97,014 80,464

134 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED RAIFEREMA T



Notes to Finanfial Statements (Continued)
By 5 2= B 5F (48)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

13. Related Party Transactions

(a)

13.

BEREALRS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these @) BRZEMBRREMIHA RS
financial statements, the Group had the following material Gh REERFANEGEEANTETT
transactions with related parties during the year: ZERRZUWT :
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-mF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
Kt FET FHET
Continuing transactions FFER 5
Purchases of furniture and decoration [A] & A 78 B &L &
services for counters and shops J& 88 2 B A R BB IR T
as well as different types of moulds A & & FEAIE B
from related companies (i) 15,523 20,255
Rental expenses for a property FAER R WEE 2
charged by a related company HeMx (ii) 1,204 2,962
Rental expenses for a warehouse KAREZWEREEZ
charged by a director of HeAx
the Company (i) 167 167
Consultancy fee to a controlling AR B R AR 5
shareholder of the Company Y7 ERE (iv) 1,583 972

Notes:

()

(i)

The purchases of furniture and decoration services for
counters and shops as well as different types of moulds
from ZBHERA BB R ORI BR QA
(Duosiwei Metal & Plastic Products (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd.)
and T % B4 KB 2 & T 32 R A &) (Changzhou
Duosiwei Furniture Decoration Construction Co, Ltd.),
related companies controlled by a close family member of
Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho
Liza, two executive directors of the Company, were made
according to the terms similar to those offered by the
Group's independent suppliers. The balances owed to
related companies as at 31 December 2015 amounted to
HK$3,557,000 (2014: HK$8,839,000) and were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable in accordance with normal
trading terms. The amounts have been included in other
payables and accruals as at the end of the year.

The rental expenses charged by & M Z2 #1753 & B IR
/A A] (Changzhou Embry Development Limited), a related
company, which was controlled by Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza,
an executive director of the Company, and close family
members of Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder
of the Company, Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Cheng
Pik Ho Liza, two executive directors of the Company, were
determined with reference to the then prevailing market
conditions. The rental agreement was terminated on 31
May 2015.

@)

(ii)

MAR B —BIERRREBHRE
ERMAUATEEERAKZ T K
BT T — B ERBATIES 2
BEARZEHEASEHESGOF
INBRARREMNZ BHERAE
i T2 A R R 708 B AL & 5 &
2R R EAS IR RS EAE
B EANE BB HERE TR
HZERBE - R=ZFT—HF
+ZA=+—BAXHEEQRZ
484 53,557,000/8 7T ( ZF— U4 ¢
883900087 ) JIEEA - R ER
FE-REBGENEE ZEXK
HENEREE AT EEMER
FRIB R ERTRUE o

HAARMITEEBEEL TR
AN B2 % R ER D % B ok A B 7
MAITESFRER L T MEEE
Ttz BBEH2BERRT
ML FZ5 3R AR A R WE Z
RIS EERIMAERE -
ZHERER =T —HFAHA
=+—H#&IE-
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13. Related Party Transactions (continued) 13. BBEEALIRZ®
(a) (continued) (a) (%)

Notes: (continued) izt : ()

(iii) The rental expenses were charged by Madam Ngok Ming (iit) HeRAZTIBHARRIRITESE
Chu, an executive director of the Company, and AEZ T RIS E ER 2 mn
determined with reference to the then prevailing market EBE o
conditions.

(iv) Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder of the (iv) RARERBREBHREEE =
Company had been engaged as a consultant of the T—NE=A-"+HAEEZE
Company for a term of one year with effect from 25 AARFBERAHE—FRE=ZT
March 2014 and has been re-engaged for another term of —hE=A-+tHAEEEAH
one year with effective from 25 March 2015. The terms of —F - FHREBNIERRBEASE
consultancy fee were based on consultancy agreements FRARBERBRRDHERTE
entered into between the Group and Mr. Cheng Man Tai. Z R ETE ©

The above continuing transactions constitute continuing BIEEMARUNE AT U EHER

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the SERBEBERS - BABEER

Listing Rules and their details are disclosed in the Report of EEEMENREE -

the directors.

The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions EERR LB FGRRAEEBEE
were conducted in the ordinary course of business of the THIBIR AT ©
Group.
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of (b) FTEEXTEEEASZHMH
the Group
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FAET
Short term employee benefits EHEBER 21,610 24,004
Post-employment benefits EREE 1212 A 331 319
Equity-settled share option expense LARS#E S 5 2 RE RS AE R 2 - 433
Total compensation paid to TR TFTEEEEAS 2 BH
key management personnel 21,941 24,756
Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s EE RITBASHMAOF BRI
remuneration are included in note 10 to the financial HRMIEE0 ©
statements.
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14.

15.

Dividends 14. BRE
2015 2014
—E-EF —F—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Dividends paid during the year FREMNRE
Final and special in respect of the BHE_Z—NWF+—-_A=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2014 LE B R EF S AR HR R A Rl AR 2
— HK8.0 cents and HK2.0 cents, — DRI RS B 8.0 Bl K&
respectively, per ordinary share 2081 (ZF—H4F
(2014: 31 December 2013 — HK8.0 cents —FT—=%+-A=+—H
and HK2.0 cents, respectively, — DRl AR E R8BI
per ordinary share) K 20784L) 41,666 41,666
Interim — HK4.0 cents (2014: HEAAR B — AR I AR 4.0 5L
HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—H%F : 4078() 16,666 16,666
58,332 58,332
Proposed final and special dividends Bk AR % 45 Bl IR B,
Final and special — HK9.0 cents REARKFRIARE — 2 5I7R
(2014: HK8.0 cents) and HK1.0 cent TR B 90811
(2014: HK2.0 cents), respectively, (ZZ—/4 : goiB{l) &
per ordinary share 1078l (= —P04F - 207811l1) 41,666 41,666

The proposed final and special dividends for the year are subject to
the approval of the Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect
the final and special dividends payable.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Owners of 15.
the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$201,574,000 (2014: HK$188,093,000) and 416,661,000 (2014:
416,661,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

FREIRR SRR SAFARBRRR
FEfE R RBF NS EHE - ZFH BRI
ARBREMREARF IS

RRABREEAEBIEERER

ERERRATIBRBEFARNRABIEE ARG
i A1) 201,574,000 7T ( = = — P 4F © 188,093,000
PETT) REFEANB BT E B 41666100008 (ZF
—PO4E : 416,661,000 A% ) 5+ & o

AEBRHEE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—HIt
FERBE_T—NF+_A=+—HLF
EWHEDETETHEELBR -

w
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. ¥% - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
G- 4B
HE+1 HENE BER RBAE
RET # He EY] RE EEIE &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TErx é7x TEx Térx TEx TEx Téx
31 December 2015 ZE-RE+-A=1t-H
Cost: A
At T January 2015 RZE-h%-f-H 682,935 3,690 103,121 183,795 15,951 204,093 1,193,585
Additions NE - - 11,412 25,935 2,744 133,500 173,591
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - (4,928) (8,362) (979) - (14,269)
Transfers b 271,789 - 3,483 16,865 - (292,137) -
Exchange realignment & it 3% (48,600) - (6,530) (11,406) (767) (6,487) (73,790)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RA%+t-A=1+—H 906,124 3,690 106,558 206,827 16,949 38,969 1,279,117
Accumulated depreciation: ZiiE
At 1 January 2015 R-E-nF-A-H 81,159 3,690 54,157 131,681 11,609 - 282,296
Provided during the year FREE 18,490 - 7,249 22,082 1,712 - 49,533
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - (4,620) (8,150) (959) - (13,729)
Exchange realignment B A (4,897) - (3,359) (7,661) (531) - (16,448)
At 31 December 2015 RZB-RF+-A=1-A 94,752 3,690 53,427 137,952 11,831 - 301,652
Net book value: FREE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-a%t-A=1+-H 811,372 - 53,131 68,875 5118 38,969 977,465

138 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED R ERERAT



Notes to Finanfial Statements (Continued)
By 5 2= B 5F (48)

31 December 2015 —E—HF+_A=+—H

16.  Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 16. Y% BMENEE®)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Plantand and office Motor  Construction

buildings ~ improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Toral
Rk %E
HEDH  HEME BER  REAE

REF % He #E a8 ERIR 5t

HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
FAT TAT TAT FAT TAT TAT FAT

31 December 2014 “E-ME+-A=1-H
Cost: A :
At January 2014 R=Z-mE-f-H 488883 3690 818 1698 T3 1305 943486
Additions NE - - 17,584 2026 1587 238152 279,349
Disposalsfwrite-off e /i - - (5275) (11620) (1042) - (17937)
Transfers R 199868 - 8695 7,468 - (216031) -
Exchange realignment fE % A% (5816) - (1,065) (1942) (157) (233) (11313)
At 31 December 2014 WZE-NE+=f=1—H 682935 3690 103,121 183,795 15951 204093 1,193,585
Accumulated depreciation: ZHITE
At 1 January 2014 RZE-RE-A—A 68693 369 53712 128561 11357 - 266013
Provided during the year EREE 1321 - 5869 15956 1386 - 36432
Disposals/write-off e /st - - (4731) (11387) (1021) - (17,139)
Bichange realignment B 5 A (75) = (693) (1449) (1) = (3010)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-EF+-A=+-H 81159 3690 54157 131,681 11,609 = 282,29
Net book value: REFE
Ac31 December 2014 RZE-EE+-A=+-R 601776 - 48964 52114 430 204093 911289
At 31 December 2015, the Group was still in the progress of RZZE—RAF+-A=+—H ' x&ENE
obtaining the building ownership certificates for certain buildings in IR AL A B R RE R B B0 5 B PR
Mainland China with a net book value of approximately ERIBCFE ZEWENEDE
HK$177,091,000 (2014: HK$200,735,000). In the opinion of the F B #1770910008 Jo( = T — O 4F:
directors of the Company, there is no major barrier for the Group to 200735000/87C) ° RAREFRR A&
obrtain these building ownership certificates. HEBEZEMENEEMERIE L /EKE

it -
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17.

Investment Properties

REM=

2015 2014

“Z-HF —ZT—mF

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FAET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RZKAEE 318,699 321,054
Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) NEEE (FF6k9) 8,000 1,000
Exchange realignment bE 5 S 2 (15,578) (3,355)
Carrying amount at 37 December R+—A=+—HZEEE 311,121 318,699

The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor, Wyler
Centre I, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong and certain floors of the building located at No. 508, Kunming
Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai City, the PRC and are held under
medium term leases.

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China were revalued on 31 December 2015 based on
valuations performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, a firm
of independent professionally qualified valuers.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection
criteria of an external valuer include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The management discusses with the valuer on the valuation

assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is

performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
prior years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 31(a) to the financial statements.

REBZIREMES BIMNREBFTAZFBAR
EHE200RERT O 2B ERFRE BT
SRR EARKsREZAES TIEE - AEH
ZARBYETREP BRRLREE

AEBEZREWMED BN EE K BEAR
HBVEXABREEMTRERITAERA
AEf -

B AEEZBINEHEMBEEHAEE
ZMFEITINER A o SN AR R B
AIEEMmEANE  BE BYERIEAF
SEXBRE - EEESFTMARTHEFE
P s HIRE T [ ER A EMEHER
R R EESERETH W ©

EFERZHETELBEES - NAEFTYE
ZRVEER  BRVMEZESRRERS
REZRIAE -

REMEUNKEHRERTE=H  EFBH
R EHREMIE31@) ©
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17.  Investment Properties (continued) 17. REWZE @)
Fair value hierarchy NEEBEER
The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 RIE-—RAFE+_A=+—BR=ZZT—NHF
December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are estimated by using TZA=+T—H  AEBENUEXR T EHEH
significant unobservable inputs and the fair value measurements are ABBEG 2 REMEZ A TFEERRTFE
categorised under Level 3. BEAEDERE=RIAT °
Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 RAFEEERE=RADEZ AT EET
of the fair value hierarchy: 2
Hong Mainland
Kong China
Bk P B KB
HKS000 HKS000
FAET FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NF— A —HZEEE 56,000 265,054
Changes in fair value recognised in R R N FER
the income statement NEEEEE) 1,000 =
Exchange realignment PE 54, 582 - (3355)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2014 and RZE—NF+-_A=+—8BX
at 1January 2015 —E—AhF—A—HBZEARE 57,000 261,699
Changes in fair value recognised in R R AR
the income statement NEEEEE 8,000 -
Exchange realignment [ 5 S - (15,578)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—hF+-_A=+—H
ZBRE{E 65,000 246,121
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRNF—REF A 2EAREERQFE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 BitE  MEESAF=FAEFE=FEL (=
(2014: Nil). F—MOF 8-

w
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17.  Investment Properties (continued) 17. REWZE @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEBESERE)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key INTREEMEGECREETEREEH

inputs to the valuation of investment properties: AR HE -

Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
MR fRESE EXTAHERRARE TR BREABEEE
2015 2014
—E-RF T F

Hong Kong Market comparable Gross unit rate HK$2,500- HK$2,200—
— Commercial properties method per square feet HK$2,600 HK$2,300
— Level 3 (note i)

BB TS LB BYHREBMLEE 2,500 8 7T - 220078 7T -
—ERYE (Btazi) 2,600 78 7T 230078 7T
—F=R

Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 4%-5% 4%—5%
— Commercial properties approach per annum (note i)

— Level 3

CilEPNGS WAE AR BEENMeK (Batii) 4%-5% 4%~5%
—ERmE
—F=

Notes: Bis

The higher the gross unit rate per square feet, the higher the fair i BEPHFRABMAEESRS  AFEYS -
value.

i, The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower the fair . BEENMEERYR - ATFEBE -

value.
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18.  Prepaid Land Lease Payments 18. FE{F L ibFEERE
2015 2014
—EB-RF e Sinfes
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHETT FAET
Cost: D%:NE
At 1 January iR=JF—4 43,755 44,316
Additions NE 1,784 -
Exchange realignment P =8 (2,668) (561)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 42,871 43,755
Amortisation: B
At 1 January n—H—H 3,859 2,990
Recognised during the year FAMER 974 907
Exchange realignment b 5, A B (264) (38)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—8H 4,569 3,859
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—HZE®EE 38,302 39,896
Current portion included in prepayments, ST ATEFRIE © R R E At I
deposits and other receivables (note 21) K8 7 BNERER 1 (Hiat21) (939) (907)
Non-current portion FEBNEAER D 37,363 38,989
19. Inventories 19. FE
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-mF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Raw materials B 35,480 38,792
Work in progress =2 41,686 50,623
Finished goods BUAK 639,687 633,204
716,853 722,619
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20.

Trade Receivables

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for wholesalers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally for a period of one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables by
the sales department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20.

PR E 5 BRK
AEBETZUEEHTAEERPETESR
HE—RE2RUEFRALENR - EEH K
A—ER TEEFPZEREHAIAIEE=F
H o NEE 2 1S /BB R Wz WO
WREEERR - BREBOASRERET
Higmad o R EXPTA R AEE 2 BIE 5
ERERZ T ZEPREEPASRS
B E|EEBEER ZEE - AEBELEH
HEWE SRS EHRFTEEAER R EMD
SRR - BRE ZRRLDEE -

AEBNREHEEE A ZREE SRR
BEREAMREOTNT

2015 2014

—E-RF —ET-EF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within 90 days 90 HIA 86,886 85212
91 to 180 days 912180 H 3,600 4,749
181 to 360 days 181 % 360 H 1,017 1,088
Over 360 days 360 H A B 658 604
92,161 91,653
Less: Impairment allowance St R EBHE (1,675) (1,692)
90,486 89,961

At 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$1,675,000 (2014:
HK$1,692,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were
in financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

W

R-ZB—RHE+-A=1+—8 KXEEEH
EEEE T LARE R FEULE 5 Bk 5K 5 1,675,000 7
JTC(ZZF—PU 4 1 169200078 7C) ° & B EE
WE SRFENIBMBRENTEEHA - 8
HA R AT U [E] F0 10 FE IR BR 5K ©
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FEW E 5 R (#)
IR SRRk B R R E T -

20. Trade Receivables (continued) 20.

Movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

2015 2014

—Z-hfF —ET—F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

At 1 January R—H—H 1,692 472
Impairment losses recognised/(written back) SEEBER(BE) (H79)

(note 9) (17) 1,220

At 31 December nNt+=—_HA=+—H 1,675 1,692

BIERRREZ EWE S RFERAMNIT

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to
be impaired is as follows:

2015 2014

—E-AHE —E MU

HKS$’000 HKS000

FET FET

Neither past due nor impaired R0 HR IR R E 86,886 85,212
1 to 3 months past due B@i1 @A E3EA 3,600 4,749
90,486 89,961

REBHIFARBIE 2 BUE 5N Ty R8T
MY EENLRE L ZRETF B -

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

EBHERREZEKRE SRR ES F E
AEBBHREFTECBZBIXP AR -
REBAERSR AR EEERYEHBEX
25 BERGKRDERE ST 2EKE @ K
RAEERABEARZTRERELIRERE -

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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21.  Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 21, FBIRE - ZEREMEKRIK

15
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—WF
HK$’000 HKS000
FET TFHET
Prepaid land lease payments (note 18) TE1 AR & FRIE (At 18) 939 907
Deposit paid and related direct cost Wi L BR L e B AT
for the land use right in Shandong e REHEZEER 2,507 2,666
Deposits for acquisition of items of g E -~ B & &EEE
property, plant and equipment [BANE 9,907 14,395
Prepayments AN IR 15,494 15,788
Deposits and other receivables e K H A WRIR 39,902 41,717
68,749 75,473
Current portion included in prepayments, SHAFENTIE - e REAM
deposits and other receivables FEW FRIA Z BNERER {7 (56,335) (58412)
Non-current portion JEBNEREL 1 12,414 17,061

None of the financial assets included in the above balances is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history

of default.

22. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2. BERBRESEEY

tEgsneREERERRSRE - A
BlESNEREE/SKOIREIERNER

A °

2015 2014

— —F0F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Cash and bank balances INE NLIRTTEEES 173,493 180,105
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity FAEE AR REIE R AL R =187

of less than three months when acquired 2T BATE 59,524 -

Cash and cash equivalents Re KA EEY 233,017 180,105
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23.

7 5 eRa= b ot (38)

—RFE+=ZA=+—H

Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 22.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$220,374,000 (2014: HK$165,792,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies; however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally made for
varying periods of between approximately one day and three
months on average depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Trade and Bills Payables 23.

An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

HERREEEY )

AREBMRABEHHEEEBUNARBFEZE
© R IRTT 45885 220374,000 78 70 (T — PO 4F ¢
1657920008 70) c ARBETAIBRLEE
Hh &8 - ERIR AR BIARE 2 SNE B 5]
IARGEE  EERMNESESRE  ~NEEE
HEEBEREETINER ZEBE ZRITHEA
RESBAEME -

ROTEFRBREFARTERNEEE 2FH
MEF R - BHERFRET 19 SHA
BE=EANE RILEEERZREE
SRME @ WIRBRZ BT RERMEGTE -
RITERERRNOPRL EEOCRZEER
WFIRTT o

BN E SRR ENRE

AEERGEHREERAZENE SRR K
ENERRERZRHIREONET

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-OF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Within 90 days 90 HA 60,837 119,053
91 to 180 days 91Z 180 H 3,424 21,030
181 to 360 days 181 % 360 B 1,207 1,805
Over 360 days 360 H A £ 2,738 4,639
68,206 146,527

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled EREGERERIL DTS - —MR30E0HA

on 30 to 90 days terms. 5 o

w
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24. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 24. FHERITER
2015 2014
—E-1% —T-mE
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 incerest rate Maturity HK$'000
kS -1k
(%) 558 Ti#n (%) HHA TR
ERRS
FERE+1.082
ERRS Yot
A8 1225 AERE108E
Hong Kong Interbank BBRIT
Current Ik Offered Rate FZRE 250
Bank loans RITER (“HIBOR” )+1.08 to 2016 HIBOR+1.08 to 2015
— unsecured — AR HIBOR+2.25 “B-RE 124,878 HIBOR+250 —Z-1% 90639
BB BART
RS +1852 FAEFE+108E
BB BART
Non-current FE0 R4 5 4225 2017-2020 AEHRE +225 2016-2019
Bank loans RITER HIBOR+1.85 to ZE-tEFE HIBOR+108 to “EREE
— unsecured — A HIBOR+2.25 33 183,333 HIBOR+2.25 “BNF 94361
2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ZT-F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: RTIIHEER ZIRITER
Within one year —FR 124,878 90,639
In the second year F_F 37,778 41,028
In the third o fifth years, inclusive FoEZFELF (BREEFE) 145,555 53,333
308,211 185,000
Less: Amount repayable within one year B RN —FEREEILSR
and classified as current portion BEREL H H) & 58 (124,878) (90,639)
Amount classified as non-current portion | R IEENEREL H HY & 183,333 94,361
The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and P IRITERAAB AW R B B RITE
bear interest at rates ranging from 1.08% to 2.25% above the HIBOR FEFEFEMBER2BE(=ZF— N
per annum (2014: 1.08% to 2.50% above the HIBOR per annum). F - REBRITRIZER SE N ZE)N1.08E Z250
EEtE) o
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25. Other Payables and Accruals 25. HMENTRIEREFT A
2015 2014
“Z-HF —ZT—mF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET F#ET
Other payables H fth FE A 5RIE 105,596 96,355
Accruals FEET A 124,437 125,988
230,033 222,343
The amounts totalling HK$3,557,000 (2014: HK$8,839,000) included S 5= (B 70 EL A FE A FRIB P B 35 9 3,557,000 & 7T
in other payables of the Group were due to related companies as at (ZZ— U4 : 8839000/87T) AN T — A F
31 December 2015. These balances were unsecured, interest-free and TZA=T—HENBEERARZRIE - %%F
repayable in accordance with normal trading terms (note 13(a)(i)). EHAEBER 2ERFER —MEEBKRNE
& (MIFE130)0) °
Other payables are non-interest-bearing, Hh B FRIBERTEE ©
26. Deferred Liabilities 2. ELEEE
Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in respect of R EEEEZREHHEE BB ER AR
long service payments which may become payable in the future Be 2 Mt G  RERGEAEARESR
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance to employees in BREEEIIREENRAEE 2 FEHRES
proportion to their periods of services with the Group up to the end XA e

of the reporting period.

2015 2014

—E-RF —T—MmF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FHET

At 1 January n—B—H 4,070 3,879

Provision/(write-back of provision) FE RS, (BERE)

for the year (note 9) (Ktato) (597) 368
Payments during the year FE 2R (390) (177)
At 31 December R+=—_HA=+—H 3,083 4,070
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27. Deferred Tax 27. EFEBIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are FRRLEHIBEEREEZLZHNT
as follows:
Withholding
Depreciation taxes on
allowance in undistributed  Temporary Withholding
excessof  Unrealised profitson difference taxes on Deferred
Revaluation related profit of PRC  of provisions interest subsidy
of properties  depreciation inventories  subsidiaries and accruals income income Others Total
FEH2E HEMEAR BER
ftatil AR AoKEN  EHRE FEKRA 414
MEER nE FEEAN ZENH 2EREE  2BEHE SRR Hit st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEr FET FET FET FHTL FEL FEr  FET  FEn
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—ME
—-A—AH 1923 1499 (23723) 26521 (23388) 247 - - (16921)
Deferred tax charged/ FRERERNG

(credited) totheincome (&%) Z BEFB

statement during the year  (fii£ 12)

(note 12) - 9 (11652) 10272 (7258) 459 (6:704) - (14784)
Payments during the year A7 fif - = - (8054) = (442) - = (8496)
Exchange realignment EH AR (25) - 300 (335) 29 ©) - - 233
At31December2014and R=Z—MF

1 January 2015 +-A=t-H

R=Z-1F
—A—H 1,898 1,598 (35,075) 28,404 (30,350) 261 (6,704) - (39968)
Deferred tax charged/ FREYGERR/

(credited) totheincome (¥4 ) ZBEFIB

statement during the year (Bt 1)

(note 12) - 99 (6,824) 11,028 1,220 776 149 (711) 5,737
Payments during the year RIS - - - (4,686) - (655) - - (5,341)
Bxchange realignment [ 5 A= (113) - 2,331 (1,918) 1,764 (19) 394 25 2,464
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—h%F

+=A=+—-A 1,785 1,697 (39,568) 32,828 (27,366) 363 (6,161) (686)  (37,108)
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27.

Deferred Tax (continued)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group
for financial reporting purposes:

IELEFRLIE (47)

AT RAREBMBEREM S BEHRIBE
BROAT -

2015 2014

—E—RF —F—F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET
Deferred tax assets recognised in the RS B SRR R TR 2 IR T

consolidated statement of financial position HRIEEE (73,781) (72,129)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RS B SRR R TR 2 IR T

consolidated statement of financial position HEaE 36,673 32,161

(37,108) (39,968)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$174,320,000 (2014: HK$125,599,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
Macau of HK$12,433,000 (2014: HK$6,291,000) that will expire in
two years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have
made assessment based on the factors which included dividend
policy and the level of capital and working capital required for the
Group's operation in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate withholding tax amount arising
from the temporary differences associated with these subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$12,496,000 (2014:
HK$11,709,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

— | e

REBRBEBE A 2 B8 E18 49 174,320,000 78
JC( = Z — P4 : 125,599,00078 7T ) AT 4 R i it
BIHEEBFB QAR ZRRERB A - R
B IR R P EE A TR IH B 18 12,433,000 8 7T (=&
— PO : 62910008 70) * A E A E R
A SHE A BB A AR R ERT & o AR
ZEBRDREEFEBE —BERZARQ
ARMEBAR BWR AR TSR BRI G
FaTEE) AR IERE - M ERZ SRR
RIELEHIHEE ©

BIEPBESEMERE  RPBARERY 2
INEDEMINRIGEES IR R EBEBA10%
ZHENFH - BERER T /N\F—H—H
BER BERAR-_ZEZ+F+_A=1+—
B2 ZF| o W B KkEEIINRIEE EFTE
AEEREI ARSI - REA 2 BB
KA RERE - RAEEM S - BATE A%
K2 10% o T a% 55 R R B K B X L FO BT 8 /A A
BHER ST \F— A —BBRMEEANR
Mo R EHTENFR EFEREERE
REBREANEBMNRA] RS REEMTERE
AR EEES/KFEREELTE -

R-ZE—RAE+-_A=+—H8 BxzZFGRN
FR B K B A BT B8 R R AR A T R AR AR IE B B
BEMNERENREETES 4 A 12496000
7570 (ZZ —I94F 1 11,709,000787T) °

7R 2% &) [A) L AR SRR A5 B B A B s (AT PR A5
HBFEER ©
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Share Capital 28. BRAK
2015 2014
—E-EE —me
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHETT FAET
Authorised: JETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 A%
HK$0.01 each HRREE 001 B ITH E B 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITNREUR
416,661,000 (2014: 416,661,000) 416,661,000 % (ZZ —PU4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 416,661,000 A% ) T AR EI &
00178 TCH) &R AR 4,166 4,166

29.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18 December
2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time, including directors but
excluding any non-executive director) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or invested entity; (i) any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
its subsidiaries or invested entity; (iii) any supplier or customer of the
Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the Group
or any invested entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any invested entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any invested entity; (vi) any advisor
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or
business development of the Group or any invested entity; (vii) any
other group or classes of participants who have contributed or may
contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement to the development and growth of the
Group; and (viii) any company wholly-owned by one or more
eligible participants as referred in to (i) to (vii) above. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 18 December 2006 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of
ten years to 17 December 2016.

29.

W

$’D\ﬂf5’t\::§§ﬂ¢+ A+ )\ B 548 %
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BREAINEERZEERE(NAR
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(ARE -~ EB R FRAIRE A 7R EMR
FRTER(BRBUIFNITESR) : (iIN4A%
B EfIAK B R Bl R ATRE 2 Al #) (A J?Eﬁ
HEP (v EMASREEREAMRER
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29.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. Share options granted to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company'’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, which period may
commence from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of the offer
of the share options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme,
if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of the share options;
(ii) the average closing prices of the Company's shares as quoted on
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company'’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

29.

BT El2)
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1T RRAD #4919 o L 768 38 b R 41 77 45 L B AR A
VEBBRENBEAE IR TR -
MAATES - FHREH N T ERE R
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VIEHITEEE AL - HAEE -

BEAN - RER T =@ ABEA - mAREE
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29.

154

. i =
Share Option Scheme (continued) 29. BBRRFEETE @)
Share Option Scheme (continued) IBIRRESTE ()
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the Share AFEINR—_ZE—RFE+_A=+—BHERK
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2015 RESHEIT AR TR R AR -
Number of share options
BREHE
Cancelled Exercise
At Granted or lapsed Exercised At price of
Name or 1January during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2015 the year the year the year 2015 share options share options options
HKS
per share
R=B-1% FREH R=B-1% BRE
SEERERES -A-B FrRdL AR FRESTHE +=A=t+-H BRERLAH BRETES 5"
SRET
Executive directors
HTES
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 60,000 - - - 60,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
ERKZL “E-—-§RA+N\A ZB-ZERATNHEZE
—E-XERA+tAE*
Ms, Cheng Pik Ho Liza 1,460,000 - - - 1,460,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
gEELT “E——%1fA+NB ZB-ZFIATNRZE
ZE-AERATLR:
Ms. Lu Qun** 540,000 - - - 540,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
BE L™ “E-—-f1A+NA ZB-ZERATNHEZE
—E-XERAt+tAE*
Independent non-executive
directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
BIRE L. “E-——-5RA+N\E ZB-ZFIATN\RE
—E-XERAt+tAE*
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
FHEEE “E-—-%1fA+NB ZB-ZFIATNRE
ZE-AERATLRE:
Prof. Lee T.S. 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
FRERE “E-—-fRA+N\A ZB-ZERRTNHEZE
—E-XERAt+tAE*
Other employees
HitfEs
In aggregate* 13,490,000 - (2,370,000) - 11,120,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
gt “2--FEAtA\R ZEB-ZFIATNHE
ZE-AERATLRE:
Others*** 35,000 - - - 35,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
Hityre ZE2--FREATAR ZEB-ZEIATNHE

ZE-XFERATLA*

15,885,000 - (2,370,000) - 13,515,000
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29. Share Option Scheme (continued) 29. BEMRHESTE
Share Option Scheme (continued) IEIRREST 2 (4
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the Share ATFEINR—_ZE—HE+_A=+—BHERK
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2014: RESHEIT AR TR R AR -
Number of share options
REHA
Cancelled Exercise
At Granted or lapsed Exercised At price of
Name or 1January during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2014 the year the year the year 2014 share options share options options
HKS
per share
REZ-—mE FREH RZZ-—mE FRRE
SEELZER —A—-B FRRH RE®  FRETR tZA=t-H BRERH RS BRETRA 4
ERET
Executive directors
HTES
Mr. Cheng Man Tai*** 35,000 = = = 35,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
BEFEE™ —Z—®RA+tN\B Z—ZE——FRAt+N\RZE
T AFERATtA
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza 1,460,000 = = = 1,460,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
BEELL —T——fRATNEB ZT--FRATNBZE
—E-AFRATLR:
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 60,000 = = = 60,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
BRIt —Z—%RA+tN\B Z—ZE—-FRAt+NRZE

“E-RERATHA"

Independent non-executive

directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 100,000 = = = 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
ARERE —Z—®RA+tN\B Z—Z——FRAt+N\RZE
—T-X"ERATLEA*
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 100,000 = = = 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
FHEEE —E——4£7A+\A ZE-—£RATN\BE
—ET—ERATEAR*
Prof. Lee T.S. 100,000 = = = 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*
ZRERE —Z—®RA+tNR Z—E—-FRA+N\RZE

2 RERATLHA"

Other employees

Hitg&

In aggregate 15,680,000 - (1,650,000) - 14,030,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 524
17 May 2016*

et “Z——%F5A+NA Z—T-—£RAT/N\AZE

—F-AFERAT+A*

17,535,000 = (1,650,000) = 15,885,000
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Share Option Scheme (continued)
tinued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options under the Share Option

Share Option Scheme (con

Scheme outstanding during the year:

The share options are vested to the grantees in the following manner:

= 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2012 with an
exercise period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2016;

= 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2013 with an
exercise period from 18 May 2013 to 17 May 2016; and

= the remaining 40% of such options were vested on 18 May
2014 with an exercise period from 18 May 2014 to 17 May
2016.

*ok

Ms. Lu Qun was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 2 February 2015. The opening balance of the number of
outstanding share options at 1 January 2015 has been reclassified to
take into account the changes in her capacity.

Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an executive director of the Company
on 24 March 2014 and has been engaged as a consultant of the
Company since 25 March 2014. The opening balance of the number
of outstanding share options at 1 January 2015 has been reclassified
to take into account the changes in his capacity.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, 20,355,000 share options
were granted and their fair value was estimated at approximately
HK$41,952,000 (approximately HK$2.06 each). With reference to the
vesting period, the Company recognised all share option expenses in
prior years (2014: HK$754,000).

The fair value of the share options was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 1.5
Expected volatility (%) 52
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.64
Expected life of options (years) 5
Exit rate — directors (%) 0
Exit rate — staff except directors (%) 14
Weighted average share price (HKS per share) 524

29.

BRESE )

BRESE (#)

FRHERR RS BT R 1T (R &Y BB AR ) AR O
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El 5

= ZEBRENINER-_F—=F1

A+N\BHE 1THEHAE-Z—=F
AFATNBE=Z—X"FRATt
SIS

= ZEBRENB T 06ER = —KN

FRATN\BEE TFEHR=F
—MERA+NBE-_ZE—XFHA
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549 541,952,000 7 7T (17 B8 AR 49 2.06 75
T0) c ARRIEREHBHRRATFEMNES
FEARAER S (ZZF — U4 : 75400078 7T) °

MR A T T I R R R A
HEAT(E  WEA RZEERERLEZLN
R B AR o T RIS A ZER A AR
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29.

Share Option Scheme (continued) 29. HBRETE )
Share Option Scheme (continued) BARESTEI(2)
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical T8 AR i e B 1R 2%/ SR R LB R 2R 2 Y
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily TERER » MR BRI/ o MAE
be the actual outcome. The exit rate is based on the historical data DIEBET ‘EERAENELHIETHE -
on staff/director turnover rates.
No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into STE AT AR A K AT RS
the measurement of fair value. BE -
The following share options were outstanding under the Share AR AR FERERESTEIIE T mARITEAE
Option Scheme during the year: e -
2015 2014
—E-IF —TF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
HKS$ HKS
per share per share
IR 15 hntE 15
THEE BREHE TEE  BREZE
HRET BT
At 1 January R—HA—H 5.24 15,885,000 5.24 17,535,000
Cancelled or lapsed FAFESHE R
during the year 5.24 (2,370,000) 5.24 (1,650,000)
At 31 December Rt+—HA=+—~H 524 13,515,000 5.24 15,885,000

No share options were granted and exercised during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 13,515,000
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the share options would, under the present capit

al

structure of the Company, result in the issue of 13,515,000 additional

ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
approximately HK$135,000 and share premium account of
approximately HK$70,683,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and at the date of

approval of these financial statements, the Company had 13,175,000
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which

represented approximately 3.16% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date.

FRRBRERITEBRE

RmEHEEER - AR R#EA 1351500017
FEARERT BT 2 M ARTTE R IR « IRIBAR
AR IRAZE 2 ETEZSERES
B RN BR8N EE 1T 13,515,000 A% 38 A% A K
= A BRI 7K 49 135,000 7% 7T M iR 19 i (B BR 4Y
70,683,0007%8 70 (FOBREEFTRISZ AT ©

WG MM E A 218 KRB I S SRR
®H - A2 RS 1317500017 R EET 8T
ZHMARITERBRE AR RRZ A%
TR AN 493.16% ©
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30.

158

Reserves 30.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the excess of
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation of certain members of the Group which took
place on 31 December 1992, over the nominal value of issued shares
of Embry Group Limited (“EGL") in exchange therefor; (i) the
premium arising from the shares issued by EGL for settlement of the
amount due to the ultimate holding company of HK$15,841,000; (iii)
the premium arising from the acquisition of Embry (H.K.) Limited
(“Embry HK”) from the non-controlling interests of HK$5,000,000;
and (iv) the excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation, over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of
HKS$0.01 each credited as fully paid at par.

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the PRC,
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profits after tax, if any, to the
enterprise expansion and statutory reserve funds, which are non-
distributable, before profit distributions to shareholders. The
amounts of the transfers are subject to the approval of the board of
directors of these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS 3 which
permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior to 1
January 2007, to remain eliminated against the consolidated reserves.
The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising
from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, was
stated at cost, which amounted to HK$3,168,000 (2014:
HK$3,168,000) as at 31 December 2015.

(G

BREBEFEAREFBSRAREES)
E2IRMBRRAGEESE KA

REBESBGEOBREEER —NDWNAL=F
T A=t BUBEASEETKERR
Z 5B ARG O E AR 5t 1E R R
F1 %34T Embry Group Limited ([ EGL]) &2 M TEI{E
ZF8 (i) EGLBL (BB R AT AR ZE IR A A 3UE
15,841,000 78 JC M EFTZE TR EE R EE
(i) M FEFE AR A s W B 2 F1 55 (B ) AR A A
(T2 FIF5EHB ) FTE 455 (8 500000087 + &
(v)IRIEE B EAWENE QR AMEE
B AN A R E R BT AME AR R A E(E
9 EB1D DA 2 3% T 1B A BR Il /E 41 2 79 10,000,000
R B EE 00 BT ERIRG RN -

RIBEHBEERMABBER - RRBRPBEK
THMERRARES T A LB
M) ERBRELEMN 2 KSR ER
EERIEERBEEZ(BARATANIK) - B
BOSHATRENBARNESSHAES
AEE -

AEEERAESUHEREELE 3HFABE
MR AF=—ZT—F— B —AmETK
BEANPMEEFHESARBENEH - R
BRGAREAR—_ZZT—F—A—HATK
BHBARELENEESHRIEAANIE B
—TE—RF+-A=1+—H%A3168000/C(=
T —[U4E : 3,168,000 7T) °
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31. Operating Lease Arrangements

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to six years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

31.

TR LK
K&

(a)

A2 B
ERHHEA
AEERBSEEORIHERLEY
% (1) - BOAN T —BAEF
TR -

RIS BRI RS - RIS EE
PS> TG AL AEE
AT B2 KRB E T & 1848
mF -

2015 2014

—E-HF —F0F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FEIT

Within one year —&FR 10,668 14,482
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRFE(BHREERE) 6,939 38,709
17,607 53,191

In addition, the operating lease rentals for the use of certain
floor areas of the Group's building located in Shanghai are
contingent based on sales of the shops pursuant to the
terms and conditions as set out in the respective
agreements. As the future sales of these shops could not be
accurately determined, the relevant contingent rent has not
been included above.

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its shops, counters, warehouses
and office properties under operating lease arrangements
with leases negotiated for terms mainly ranging from one to
ten years.

(b)

AN ERAKEMR LB BT 2
ETREEEDERZ SN EERLY
HEeSHAEE - DHIREE@HHEA
BZERRGHRESZHERE
E o AN EE 2 RRHE AR
ERMET  HEBFIXAEESALRE
BELR -

EREMA
AEERBELEHORPFEARETE
i B RERPAEYE  BY
TR+ FFIETER -

w
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31. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued) 3. KREENZH @)
(b)  As lessee (continued) (b) 1EAREEAE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future RIREBLERE - REAEB 2T
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating AIRSHAETA - REERATHE
leases falling due as follows: ZARREEENESETEMOT ¢
2015 2014
—EB-fHF —TmE
HK$’000 HKS000
FET F#ET
Within one year —FR 113,508 131,407
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF(BHEEEMF) 51,072 63,722
After five years hFR 3,931 1,563
168,511 196,692
In addition, the Group has entered into agreements with gboh - REB B R E R RFI M
department stores to enable the Group to set up its retail NERAEEERERAARRETE
outlets therein. The operating lease rentals for the use of B o (£ A E AR Z B HEEEmEN
their floor areas in department stores are based on the 2B EERE S DR R E EH S sk
higher of a fixed rental or contingent rent based on sales of ANHEEMERZBEREETE ° KA
the retail outlets pursuant to the terms and conditions as © THIR G B8 197 5 P 2 IR R (R
set out in the respective agreements. As the future sales of RTERIHERET - ARNZET
these retail outlets could not be accurately determined, the BRI AR ERREERMET
relevant contingent rent has not been included above and WMERSARSLRBFELE LR £
only the minimum lease commitments have been included RIEHTHIEHERIE -

in the above table.
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32. Commitments 32. RIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following RREHREER  AEBZAENT :

commitments:

2015 2014
—E-hHfF —= O
HK$’000 HKS000
FET TET
Contracted for commitments in respect EEYE  BERREY
of the acquisition of property, BRI RVFHE
plant and equipment 170,854 94,660
33. Contingent Liabilities 33. HARERE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not REREER - B HRR DI T RBE 2
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: NBEWT :
2015 2014
—E-EF —ET—MmF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Bank guarantees given in lieu RREDFEEERE R
of property rental deposits NHF IR S TR
and utility deposits ZERITER 2,196 2,196
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34. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

34. BRERINzEMTA

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: I
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BRI ERIE
2015 2014
—E-8F T F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Trade receivables FEUE S BRI 90,486 89,961
Financial assets included in prepayments, TIAEMZE  ZRERk
deposits and other receivables Hi By @ EE 6,361 6,656
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY 233,017 180,105
329,864 276,722
Financial liabilities cHes
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHERATEZSRARE
2015 2014
—E-8F —ENF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRITER 308,211 185,000
Trade and bills payables B S BRI R RN =i 68,206 146,527
Financial liabilities included in other B BEENE A ER FRIE R
payables and accruals ExtRIEZ /A E 145,016 137,877
521,433 469,404
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments, comprise cash, short
term deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The directors review and agree policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. The Group's exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group'’s bank borrowings
with floating interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge its exposure to
interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly review
the economic situation and its interest rate risk profile, and will
consider appropriate hedging measures in future as may be
necessary.

At 31 December 2015, the post-tax profit of the Group would have
been decreased/increased by approximately HK$1,541,000 (2014:
HK$925,000) if the interest rate has been increased/decreased by 50
basis points with all other variables held constant.

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sales and purchases transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to protect against the volatility associated with
foreign currency transactions and other financial assets and liabilities
created in the ordinary course of the business. However, as the
Group's net profit is reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a
translation gain as a result of the RMB appreciation, and vice versa.
The majority of the Group's operating assets are located in Mainland
China and are denominated in RMB.

35.

IS EREE B R RBER
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35.

Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the

reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB

exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s

profit after tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets

B ISR P e T B AR R BSR4

SN FEL Bz (48

TRITINREPEEER - A EMA
BRREFTENBERT  AEEROBRTR
AT ARKERAEEHE AR B 2 HUK
E(HREREERBBENAFEED) -

and liabilities).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in profit
ARY after tax
ExEHE BB % F
(T#) i, ()
% HKS'000
FET
2015 —B-AHF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WS T H A REEZ (B 5 9,062
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB BT R AREHE (5) (9,062)
2014 — TP
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB HETHARKRE 5 23,891
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB fie 7 T A REETHE (5) (23,891)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy customers.

Itis the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on

credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,

receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an

individual basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a

trading limit and any excess of the limit must be approved by the

general manager of the operation unit. Under the tight control of

the credit term and detailed assessment of the creditworthiness of

individual customers, the Group's exposure to bad debts is

maintained as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise

cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default

of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 20 to

the financial statements.

EERE g
REBERMNEREBRIFNEPETRS °
REREENEE  EABEAMEERAE
IRHNEFHBLBEERERRF 1t/
AEBETHEERSHBUWIRSER - A%
BHELREPRUBEHRE  BHBRE
WABEIE BB 2 IR - ANAE
BEEEEY  YAHRERNES 2 EEBEF
BRHE  AEE ZERERARE

AEBEMEREENEERREBRERER
REeFEYREMBYIE  BYTENE
EMEERE  EREFNZFTLAZER
=0

ERASEREZREEREE 2 EERR
ZE— T EBEBENI MR 20 RKE
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35.  Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. MBEREEEERBEX®
Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk RBESERE
Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all mEE & RARERENEESAEBNAEE
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The Group’s Mz ERNHBAE - REE 2 BERREFR
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to monitor @z eRBER  EERBRELRERREE
liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a contingency plan X TREEZESE BRAKE
for funding to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient cash to BEBERARUBNERSESRR

meet its liquidity requirement.

The Group continued to enjoy adequate cash position with cash R-ZE—RHE+_A=1+—H "EBLE
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$233,017,000 (2014 BEZRRRe2UBRR  EReRESE
HK$180,105,000) as at 31 December 2015. B ¥ A&233017000/%8 t( = T — I F:

180,105,000 /8 JT ) ©

The Group financed its operations and investment activities by RNEBFEBAIEE 2R SR RRITER
internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings. REEBRFEEHIRHES -

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end RBEREEER - AEERBEE LRI
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted NHEFEZ2RBEIHENT

payments, was as follows:

Within

1year 1to5 years Total
- EF W —2% ﬂE %.ﬁ'
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FHA&T FEIT

2015 —E-RE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings =t ERITER 131,189 191,746 322,935
Trade and bills payables ENESERRENEE 68,206 - 68,206
Other payables and accruals H{th FET 30 TE N FE ST FR IR 145,016 - 145,016
344,411 191,746 536,157

2014 —ZE—HF
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EIRITER 94,360 97,824 192,184
Trade and bills payables FENESERLENEZE 146,527 - 146,527
Other payables and accruals H {th e~ 5008 K FEET TR IR 137,877 - 137,877
378,764 97,824 476,588
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35.
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk through the granting of
financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 33
to the financial statements.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the
owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance
where appropriate. No change was made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the

B ISR P e T B AR R BSR4

RBEEE R (E)
BERBEMBER  AEETEHBRRBES
B - HiE— SRR RN SRR MEESs

BEXRER
AEBEERHERUBRAEERIELE
Rl I P2 58 2 B8 BB L 75 R s 6 5k (W03E
RIBHEBEANEREEZK - REE_-F
—RER_F-WFE+_HA=1+—HLFE "
BREARZBR  BRIEFAEES -

AEEENGBERERFRETBERT
EREARBEEAREBRE - ARRHEE

Company. Equity attributable to owners of the Company comprises AR EAEGAESEHRABEEND
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the BATIRAN « B RARER T o
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total AARBIBEER G REE (ARITHE G
bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable to owners of the EB DA A RIS A FE(GIERE) EE4 8 K o A
Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods WEMKEEAGBHRWT :
were as follows:
2015 2014
= —mE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITER 308,211 185,000
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AKREHEE ANEMLER 1,790,823 1,744,565
Gearing ratio BEAGBHLX 17.2% 10.6%
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 36. A2 BB R
2015 2014
—E—RE —Z—OF
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FEIL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AT 2 917,018 836,336
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments SEINE/E 44 46
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 152 44
Total current assets RBEEMAE 196 90
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals EL AN RRIE I
JEFt IR 8,335 7,593
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE (8,139) (7,503)
Net assets BEFE 908,879 828,833
EQUITY S
Share capital A& 7N 4,166 4,166
Reserves (Note) et (K aE) 904,713 824,667
Total equity fERERS 908,879 828,833
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  36.
(continued)

KD BB FEAR R 3R (42)

Note: it -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AATHEEEENT
Retained
Share Share profits/
premium Contributed option  (accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
REEAN/
R 13 E R EREY BRERSE (RHER) @t
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
izt FET FET F#T F#TT FEIT
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—MFE—F—H 369,644 381,248 34,303 (160,673) 624,522
Profit for the year and total FERRFR
comprehensive income for the year 2EBALE - - - 257,723 257,723
Equity-settled share option arrangements  bARE%S 5 i 7 BB AR i 2 4k 29 - - 754 - 754
Share options lapsed B R L - - (2273) 2273 -
2013 final and special dividends BERREXNZF—=F
declared and paid RERAFRIRRE, 14 - - - (41,666) (41,666)
2014 interim dividend —E-mEHREHRKRE 14 - - - (16,666) (16,666)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—MmF
and 1 January 2015 +-A=1+—"H
k=F—h%—F—H 369,644 381,248 32,784 40,991 824,667
Profit for the year and total EEHRMNEEAR
comprehensive income for the year el ONGE] - - - 138,378 138,378
Share options lapsed BE AR AE SRR - - (4,861) 4,861 -
2014 final and special dividends ERMEXM =T —MFE
declared and paid FR: e =, 14 - - - (41,666) (41,666)
2015 interim dividend —E-hERHES 14 - - - (16,666) (16,666)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—1F
+=-A=1—"H 369,644 381,248 27,923 125,898 904,713

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the then
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the
group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid at par. Under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium and contributed surplus may
be distributed to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire, be forfeited or lapse.
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31 December 2015 —ZE—HF+=-A=+—H
37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 37. FTENMBLARER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RABFEMBARNFELAT
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BETK
AL, BRBRB/
£ AR B HREF ARAEGESEDL TERH
2015 2014
—E-RE C—ZT-MF
Embw Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ZRFBMERR &k 100787T REER
Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. PRC/ RMB136,200,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Embry CZ")™* Mainland China AR 136200000 7 ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHRE (BM) fR% RA] HE B A R swimwear and sleepwear
U?l%%HD” BUERBRLIME -
A KK X
Embry (China) Garments Ltd. PRC/ HK$11,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Embry SZ")** Mainland China 11,000,000 7T ladies’ brassieres, panties,
LA %"’(‘:F‘.) KARRAA HE/ B AR swimwear and sleepwear
([ FFRI]) = BUERBRLIME -
A KK X
Embry HK Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres,
ZHB BB o HK$45,000 panties, swimwear and
*Non-voting deferred sleepwear
HK$4,500,000 BELIRE - W
Epale KT R
45000 7T
CERFERTR
4500000 7T
Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies” brassieres,
Limited (Embry (Macau) R 100,000 P& panties, swimwear and sleepwear
Pronto A Vestir, Lim\tada) BEERIHE - AfE -
ZF7 CRF) BRRBRA KT B R
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$18,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
Limited (“Embry SD")** Mainland China 18,000,000 575 ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHFE (LR REER DA BB A R swimwear and sleepwear
(TZFFILR]) = SERBRLIEMmE -
It » I R
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and
Limited (“Embry SH")** Mainland China 238,000,000 7 7T development and trading
LA (L8 BRAR R B K B of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
(I&HFE L&) = swimwear and sleepwear

Rat R AER
BERLIEME -
P - KR RER

w
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37.

38.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 37. FEMBATEER #)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RATFEMBARNFERT : ()
(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BRITR
&L #BERG/
£ EMREE b HEMEA AARELESE DL TEER
2015 2014
—B-1Ff —T[@F
Embry Garments Limited BVI Usst 100 100 Investment holding
HEELEE (e REER
EGL BVI US$472 100 100 Investment holding
EERTES I E REER
Embry International Limited BVI USs$1 100 100 Investment holding
ZHF BT AR AR HRELRS E REER
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 Investment holding
BFREARAR &k VBT REER
Prime Force Advertising Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 Property investment
BB 20787T MERE
Whistleblower Limited BVI USs1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
HERIES Ev HERR
* The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than - AR SRR R 0 A [ A R R AR B (B
for any financial year during which the net profit of Embry HK available = F B & E A R B A AT E A
for dividend exceeds HK$1,000,000,000,000), no rights to vote at general 1,000,000,000,000 TT A E (A BB SZ B 91 )
meetings and no rights to receive any surplus in return of capital in a RIREXE FRER RSB FWRRE
winding-up in respect of the first HK$500,000,000,000,000. 500,000,000,000000;8 TR [6] & KB (E (o] F2#f o
* Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are registered as - ZHRNB FM ~ ZFF R ZFF LR R
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law. ZHF LA IREF BDE G| AR EINE
b7 30
Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the BRECLON » Eul P KT A R1¥9 B A1 Rl
Company. #E -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the EXRMAIARRIMBRARINESTRAEHANF
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year EXEEEEVEIBRAEEEEFES
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To AR EZHIBAR - BER R K8
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the RAEIZFE O - BE@SERBRITE
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
. . B 2x
Approval of the Financial Statements 38. HLEBIEERE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 23 March 2016.
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